TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Zoning Board of Adjustment
_ i 9 South Main Street
\ Progress with Vision 4 Waynesville, NC 28786
, Incorporated ‘“' ' Phone (828) 456-8647 = Fax (828) 452-1492
S www.wavnesvillenc.gov

Development Services
Director
Elizabeth Teague

George Escaravage (Chairman)
Henry Kidder (Vice-Chair)
Stephanie Strickland

Edward Moore

Joshua Morgan

John Baus

Robert Herrmann

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
REGULAR MEETING
Town Hall - 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC 28786
Tuesday, April 5, 2022, 5:30 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER/BUSINESS ITEMS:
1. Welcome/Announcements

2. Adoption of Minutes (as presented or amended) from January 4, 2022

3. Public Hearing to consider a variance request at 282 and 296 Richland Street,
Waynesville, NC, PIN 8615-06-8891, of the Minimum Lot Width Standards for the Main
Street Neighborhood Residential (MS-NR) District, Land Development Standards
Section 2.4.1(3)c.

4, Public Hearing on an Appeal of an Administrative Decision related to 134 Belle Meade

Drive, Waynesville, NC, PIN 8605-81-6159, in the Hazelwood Urban Residential
District (H-UR).

B. ADJOURN



PR
Page 1 of 5

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
Zoning Board of Adjustments

9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492

George Escaravage, Chairman www.waynesvillenc.gov Development Services
Director
Elizabeth Teague

Henry Kidder, Vice-Chairman
Joshua Morgan
Edward Moore

John Baus MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS
RObert Hetmidnn Regular Meeting
Stephanie Strickland i &
Town Hall — 9 South Main St., Waynesville, NC 28786
January 4, 2022

THE WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS held a Regular Meeting January 4,
2022, at 5:30 p.m. in the Boardroom of Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC. 28786.

A. CALL TO ORDER

1. Welcome/Calendar/ Announcements

The following members were present:
George Escaravage, Chairman
Henry Kidder, Vice Chairman
Stephanie Strickland
Robert Herman

The following Board members were absent:
Edward Moore
Joshua Morgan
John Baus

The following staff members were present:
Elizabeth Teague, Development Services Director
Olga Grooman, Planner
Kathy Johnson, Deputy Clerk

The following media were present:
No media were present

The following public were present:
Ronnie Justice
Deborah Justice
Daniel Massie

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
January 4, 2022



3

Page 2 of 5

Zoning Board of Adjustment Chairman George Escaravage welcomed everyone and called the meeting
to order at 5:30 p.m. He read the protocols for a Quasi-Judicial Hearing and explained the rules of
standing. He asked those wanting to testify in this hearing to come forward to be sworn in.

Ronnie Justice, Deborah Justice, Dan Massie, Elizabeth Teague, and Olga Grooman were sworn in.

2. Adoption of Minutes (as presented or amended) from December 7, 2021

Chairman Escaravage asked if everyone had reviewed the minutes for December 7, 2021 meeting,

A motion was made by Board member Robert Hermann, seconded by Board member Henry Kidder to
approve the December 7, 2021 meeting (as presented or amended). The motion carried unanimousiy.

(4-1)

3. Request for a Variance of the Minimum Lot Size Standards for the Hazelwood Urban
Residential District (H-UR) for the property located at 115 Belle Meade Drive Pin 8605-

80-6996.

Chairman Escaravage asked if any members of the Board had conflict of interest in this request for
variance. With all Board members agreeing there were no conflict-of-interest, Town Planner Olga
Grooman was invited to provide the staff presentation.

Ms. Grooman went over the staff report, providing photographs and maps. She explained the property
located at 115 Belle Meade Drive owned by Mr, Hugh Massie is in the H-UR district and has a house
and a shed and two parking areas. Mr. Ronnie Justice owns the abutting property at 417 Riverbend Strect
and the parking area he is using is located on Mr. Massie’s property. Both neighbors assumed the parking
area was on Mr. Justice property at 417 Riverbend, but recently learned the parking area is on the 115

Belle Meade property owned by Mr. Massie.

Mr. Tustice would like to relocate the rear property line of 115 Belle Meade Drive to match the existing
fence line so the parking area would become part of the 417 Riverbend lot. Haywood County GIS maps
indicates the fence has been in place since 2013, The relocation would make the 115 Belle Meade
nonconforming to H-UR district minimum lot size according to the LDS standards. The property at 417
Riverbend is smaller than the minimum lot size for H-UR and is a legal nonconforming lot. If the parking
arca is added, the lot will still be below minimum lot size but to a lesser degree of nonconformity.

Ms. Grooman went over the map and explained the Hazelwood Urban Residential District is an older
neighborhood, once part of the Town of Hazelwood, and explained that many of the lots are smaller than
the minimum lot size. She also pointed out that some buildings in the neighborhood are located across
property lines. The buildings and lots in question pre-date the current LDS standards.

Ms. Grooman read the purpose and intent of the LDS for H-UR district. Ms. Grooman said that approving
the variance would allow the property owner to reduce the size of one lot, creating nonconformity related
to the current L.DS minimum lot size standards, but would increase lot size on the other lot, decreasing
its non-conformity with the standards.
Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting

January 4, 2022




4
Page 3 of 5

She concluded that the relocation of the boundary line would not change the character of the
neighborhood, or the nature of how either lot is used. It would also still be compliant with LDS setbacks
for the district. She went over the Variance findings checklist from staff that must be considered by the
Zoning Board of Adjustment to approve the proposed Variance,

Public notice signs were posted on the subject property on December 15, 2021. Notice of the public
hearing was submitted to local media and mailed {0 owners of the properties within 100 feet of the
subject property on December 16, 2021,

Ms. Grooman entered the following items into Evidence on behalf of the Town of Waynesville:
1. Staff report
2. Variance Request Application
3. Payment Receipt for Variance Application
4, Agent Authorization
5. Survey Showing the Proposed Lot Line Relocation
6. Images of the Subject Property
7. Zoning Map of the Subject Property and Surrounding Area
8. GIS Image Showing Lot Sizes int the Surrounding area
9. Pictures of the Distance between the Shed at 115 Belle Meade Drive and Proposed property
line,
10. Notification Material
11. Town of Waynesville Land Development Standards (LDS) by Reference

Chairman Escaravage asked if there were any questions from the Board and explained there were four
Board members present and would require a unanimous decision. He asked the applicant if they wished
to proceed. The applicate stated they would like to continue with the hearing,

Deborah Justice
85 Chertry Cove Road
Cullowhee, NC

Ms. Justice stated she and her husband used to own 115 Belle Meade and sold the property to Mr. Massie.
They are currently owners of 417 Riverbend. They purchased 115 Belle Meade and the adjoining 127
Belle Meade property in 1993, In 1995, they purchased the house on Riverbend Street. She said when
they purchased it, they made the parking space that is under consideration. Owning all the land involved,
they did not think about having the land surveyed off and adjusting deeds. The fence was installed several
years before Mr. Massie bought the property. When he bought it from them in July of 2016, the chain
link fence had been installed several years prior to that. She said her mother-in-law was the renter at the
time and had a pet, and the fence was put in on what they thought was the property line. When the
property was sold to Mr. Massie it was a cash sale and no survey was done. The issue of the parking
space came to their attention when they put the Riverbend property on the market, and the Realtor pulled -
the map finding that the parking area is not technically on the deed. Ms. Justice further explained that
they had to pull it off of the market and file the variance application so it could be cotrected before it
was sold. She said her husband Ronnie has spoken with Mr, Massie in person and he is fine with making
the change. He did not realize the parking area was on his property. We will be reimbursing him for the
taxes he has paid on that portion of the lot since he purchased it. =

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes

Regular Meeting
January 4, 2022




Page 4 of 5

Ms. Justice answered questions from the Board. She explained Mr. Massie is unable to attend and his
son Daniel Massie will be representing him.

Ms. Teague asked Ms, Justice to clarify for the Board that if the variance is not granted, that there would
then be no off-strect parking for the residence of 417 Riverbend Street. Ms. Justice said that there is a
narrow area that is currently lawn that would be the only space available for parking.

Daniel Massie
19 Spruce Street
Canton

Speaking on behalf of his father Mr. Massie said back taxes will be paid to his father, and he nor his
father sees a problem with it.

A motion was made by Board Member Robert Herrmann, seconded by Board member Stephanie
Strickland to close the public hearing at 5:54 pm. The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

The Board went through the Variance finding checklist and deliberated the facts of the case. Chair
Escaravage read through each criteria and asked the Board to vote on each, with the following result:

(1) Will unnecessary hardship result from the strict application of the ordinance? (Yes 4-0)

(2) Does the hardship result from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size
or topography? (Yes 4-0)

(3) Is the hardship the result of actions taken by the applicant or the property owner? (No 4-0)

(4) Is the requested variance consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such
that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved? (Yes 4-0)

A motion was made by Board member Henry Kidder, seconded by Board member Robert Herrmann
to approve the varviance of the Minimum Lot Size Standards for the Hazelwood Urban Residential
District (H-UR) for the property located at 115 Belle Meade Drive Pin 8605-80-6996. The motion

carried unanimously. (4-0)
C. ADJOURN

A motion was made by Board member Stephanie Strickland, seconded by Board member Robert
Herrmann to adjourn the meeting at 6:03pm.

George Escaravage, Chairman Kathy Johnson, Deputy Clerk

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
January 4, 2022



Zoning Board of Adjustment Staff Report

Subject: Request for a Variance of the Minimum Lot Width Standards for the Main Street
Neighborhood Residential (MS-NR) District, Land Development Standards
Section 2.4.1(3)

Applicant: Andy Brown

Meeting Date: April 5, 2022

Summary Information:

Application Date: March 7, 2022

Proposed Location: 282 and 296 Richland Street, NC 28786 — PIN 8615-06-8891
Property Qwner: Andy and Susan Brown

Acreage of Site: 0.34 acres

Zoning District: Main Street Neighborhood Residential (MS-NR)

Existing Development: Two Single Family Residential Structures on a single lot

Background:

The Brown’s property is located within the corporate limits of Waynesville and the Main Street
Neighborhood Residential District (MC-NR). The property consists of (.34 acres, with frontage along
Richland Street in the vicinity of the intersection with Meadow Street.. The property is surrounded on all
sides by single-family lots. The property currently has two single family homes on it which have individual
addresses and parking areas.

The applicant would like to subdivide the property in order to create two unique lots around the two
individual structures. At one time, the lot was two individual lots which appeared to be recombined and
the old lot line is shown on the plat. To return to the original lot line, however, would create a setback
violation. In order to meet minimum setbacks between the buildings, the lot drawn around #282 has to
be more narrow than the 50’ minimum lot width for the district. The proposed lots would otharwise
conform to the minimum lot size for the district and the side yard setbacks between the buildings and the
new boundary line.

The granting of the variance would not change the appearance or character of the lot itself as the
structures are already in existence, but would allow the conveyance of one of the properties. Any future
new construction or redevelopment on either of the lots would have to comply with setbacks and other
land development standards. The creation the of the property boundary will not change the physical
location or visual impact of what is in existence now and would not create a change to the character of
the neighborhood or inhibit future development.

The purpose and intent of the MS-NR district (Land Development Standards, Section 2.3.3(C)} states:

The Main Street Neighborhood District (MS-NR) is a walkable, in-town neighborhood separating
two business districts -- the Central Business District and the South Main Street Business District. In
addition to the convenient location, the public library, Central Elementary School and many larger,



older homes are among the amenities that malce this area attractive for residential living. Future
develapment should work to maintain this attractive area, cantinuing a scale and design that will
attract ongoing residential use of this district. The dense tree canopy currently found in the area will
be maintained and sensitivity to this canopy and the improvement of pedestrian facilities will be
important with any new development.

Surrounding Land Use/Zoning Patterns:

The subject property is surrounded by single-family jots within the same zoning district. Several nearby
lots within the same district are also less than 50’ in lot width:

e 270 and 276 Richland Street are on a single lot of 0.18 acres of 49’ and 46'.
e 301 Meadow Street is 0.08 acres and is 35" in width
e 218 Meadow Street is 0.15 acres and 28’ in width.

Proposed Variance:

The request would permit the property owner to subdivide the lot in question, compliant to the minimum
lot size and side yard setbacks, but with a minimum lot width variance of 11.1’ for the lot proposed to
contain #282 (shown on preliminary plat as 38.9" in width).

Staff offers the following comments regarding the findings that must be considered by the Zoning Board
of Adjustment:

(1) That there are unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter of this chapter.
e The variance would create two conforming lots in all but lot width, and the preliminary plat is

drawn in order to accommeodate existing residential structures.
+  Astrict enforcement of the minimum lot width will prevent the subdivision.

(2) That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building
involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings located in the same
land development district.

e The lot to be subdivided contains two single family homes that are already individually addressed
and is drawn so that the proposed property line does not create any setback issues with existing
structures.

s The variance requested would be for minimum lot width for a district in which there are other
lots which do not comply with the minimum lot width.

® Any possible future development on the property in question would still have to comply with the
district sethacks.

{3) That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant. The
act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of
a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.
» The property has existed in its current state since at least 2004. It was conveyed from the
Brown's to an LLC which they control.



{4) That the varfance is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this chapter and preserves its
spirit.

» There exist properties within this same zoning district which do not meet the minimum lot width
standards. The proposed subdivision does not change the nature of the property as it exists
now.

¢ The property was originally platted as 2 lots as noted in the proposed survey.

{5} That the variance is the minimum necessary to afford relief.
e The requested variance is for 11.1" reduction in minimum lot width in order to accommodate
required property line sethacks.
® The lots created from the proposed subdivision are compliant with the minimum lot size and
setbacks for the MS-NR zoning district.

(6) That the public safety and welfare have been assured and substantial justice has been done.
* The variance to the minimum iot width would not cause a public safety issue.

* The variance does not change the physical configuration of existing structures but would allow
the property owner the ability to convey by sale either of the structures separately.

Items Entered as Evidence:

Staff Report

Variance Request Application

Payment Receipt for Variance Application

Proposed preliminary plat showing the proposed lots, setbacks, lot widths, and old lot line,
Property information and aerials from Haywood County Land Records 2019 and 2004
Zoning Map of the Subject Property and Surrounding Area

Notification Materials

Town of Waynesville Land Development Standards {LDS) by Reference

RN L A WNE



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department
PO Box 100
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 » Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvitlenc.gov

Variance Request

Property Address/Location: 2 8 Z - 24 b R-’ CH’L\QI\[ D 47'—
Property PIN: SM { 5,"51/9 -8841 Property Zoning District: _{} !&ILJ <1 QMMQ R HoeD @‘?;IDKM ‘///4 "
Flood Zone?: N 0 Historic Property or District?: m l Ié A !Q]JM

Signature of property owner of record: }2 el Zw/ s Z .426",-,/:{ Date: _J -7 =242
*Applicant Name: b, A D‘é 5 P\a Wa) AppIicant Phone #: 57@ ~5 S‘E ~| 702
Applicant Address: ?LQ B“K !0 ‘q"q 2, i u‘f ’[/M N]) 5 % 03

Application must be filed by !he owner of the property or by an agent speuf ically authorized by the ovner,

ﬁ [./ / .f "“ -
I, 4 > / i 2"‘ u_‘_/( hereby petmau the Board of Adjustment for a variance from the
provisions of the Town Ordinance Land Development Standards for this property as described below.

Applicable Ordinance Section: L DS 2.4 ’b v aboen § LB A S AwuL—-_lg

Crdinance requirement from which relief'is sought: Lot W M

Variance requested and why (attach additional sheets, maps, or other information as necessary):

Tt L 2l He S0 siven. 2/ & ,,,,‘/,L Z

w«///f /75 L 2L . /,{;,/cw,‘, fases: /ot S v A
The Toved ok tid nt) he 207 et ot A oll &t EF TH
goves el Tna K:L Eﬁﬂé /7/,,! Lat/[?i'tz/_';.ﬂ’lr/{,, A,?,ﬂ //r i fih A,M_

5
gb ﬁrc[ /,_}_\ (‘"'1'{7" 14 A-ff’v//-/ o~ Sl £4

Applicant Signature:/ pd l 2" Date: 3 ~7-2:2%

Standards of Review for Variances:

1. General Variance Requests: The Board of Adjustment shall not grant a variance unless and until it makes all of the
following findings:
a. That there are unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter of this chapter.
b. Reserved.



10

BPG: 1
TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE MISC RECEIPT 2738258
280 CGECRGIA AVENUE REFERENCE Admin Appeal
WAYNESVILLE NC 287856 DATE/TIME p3/08/22 11:19
CLERX 2044ecou
CUSTCMER Triangle Automotive Re
EFF. DATE p3/08/2022
DEPT
01 250.00
TOTAL: 250.00
PMT TYPE QTY REF AMOUNT

CHECK 1 6244 250,00



4334 Aznans sn sunn (8
OETFIEE6T ULLAVA aRD ENEnee (8

219 TEOCW amEn (f
[ 0t SHA RSO ONINGD OENE/EHSTERd (9
ST i TR A S CIors 48 SR SaLvs Il {ioz)es, QYN Muvd (5
- SR K SV LVl ALIVISINT B0 LIS ¥ 0 VMY MY MOHIM e TEOT/INIZ0 TEOE/FL/E0 ANUNS A0 SAva (¥
SRLST W TTIASSHAM SO 1 TRt B e et g | T3 GV s s MM THNOIVONL GTEH 549 40 3 (£
Avo GOUMTDE 0 O 20 GILYH ML IVHL | IWHl Save T K M00H HI ONNOZ KOIFYRHOINT SO0 H AIVHNOOY TYNOILSCd (T
TTd KGN 7 T S VIO SR 3 GUIS LW soRranos L b
(ari— oK FONL) SIBCTNS (IVT ATENG ?E!umm!ﬁ:dh THTL 20w G W) (SH00TE NOILABIS0 v RIS 4o ssvw (1
@ 905 AN MIB] FIVI XSUITS “DTILTS MY 7Y HOBIWESNS
AN 00NN RAVEE EYM 1v7d ST AVHL A0 © ST NADI T 1 BALON S
ZZ0Z ‘9 AdYRuEEd T UVE AT = .t C IS
] ]
o3 oF oz 4 =4
oHa M8 0Z-0 9d 0. Hd
£97Z B OD6 H'Q : STMNDITIT
O'N “00 GDOMAYH L TTIASINA S
LENKD — OT UITUS GNVEOR #6T “«
3
OT1 133MLS AONVTIHOIM +6€ § ] . /
P WI“ <Ha 38 DNI..MU!;.GQ. - Gd _‘
AIDUUyBs, Te— _ an
o gLLgfSd] srme = S o
56 Rid Naa _‘w
— =
(915 "9d gz& @O}
Riag . G291 Dd WKF GT .
00051 J7TT SLNIALSIAN! QR0 U4
j ol M _O0.6CBL N W
4 £
../lfl g, (umwg) Sung ooy 0
14 s zee) T Tt WRF L
/ g WLLLO
0z~ 9d .4, ‘dd #d [Lcnt
(ohang) Dol By e @
19945 MopDap A
%
fpoay woudty 37 r s
0g-Q Od Hg Bd
. I oo T -
wozxs, | T 19805 puDony . Elfm%! —_ TEmps
wAaoN T om ow § . . 4 E ¥ T
E % i 2 i — oL A G5
H = T FIGEOL N
H Y (2 45 o) ’ “ e
= H E 3 P «Ha 8 02-0 24 .4, Bd
/R0 /an
@ =
: 5
{ &
- A
..‘ HRL #G §0 ey \
] £°8 Spoonuy g
i Himi yg g0 ey
\ SEEE i FZECEEL S oy w0

=ty n_. ; ONIDS Zdld NOMI JTf'L
; H. T8 02-C 9d W, 8d
J &
_.. 207 94 ¥88 50
P um NOSXIQ SINNIQ

—
—
—
—

———————— = EAYEO 40 B (B
—— 3 —a —— = AL T (T
W I8 CE-0 94 4. "d ——1 —— . —— = JNOHIT1AL M.N
P 8§ ——3 ——— = JWISITA (¢

ish = SIUNEN gVIHEEAO  (m

ZUZ ‘0 w6z WU
HILSTIVON WAVT ADNYN

it W—H— = N3 (L

“(LHOZIER, WY'N SI NOILYMNONI Q9 Tiv (9

BNNCNSD TVINDZRDH RV S30NVASIR TV (5
ava UOLOTHD ORIBIIA — TV £ WeoL awo dtam Aot dYD 0 HLM YvEEN 9/6 = 135 Nid NN = 5 (P
SRV WHED = YRV WL (T
ATHNE) IEMAYH J0 SITEA 20 WELSOTY JHL 20 200
0T ORKIHCIZE B04 SIMEMENIEDTH AMDILIVIS TV SITm i | f
%:.Bi“ﬁﬁmﬁ?ﬂhbﬂhﬂ!ﬂﬂ 3 frert e T E...«h.mxmu‘m QOHLIN "0Q AE (ELRJNCT YUY (2
Y TS Sk 1v0a SR 1D, LML) X | RLIGD OOGRIVH 40 A0 FEAE ' “TLNGOIS3S QOOHUDEHSAN LTS NYW — Nor {1
A 7
_FTRASINAYM 30 NMOL. 40 ILVOUILYIO J—
VIO HLEON 20 RLVIS

ON2257 F SIION




N

*sdews asay) uo paurejuos uor ewl ol au Joj Ay|igisuodsal
|eBaj ou swnsse Jepnoid ausgem ay) pue Ajunoa poomAeH “sdew
U1 AUE JO UONEDLLIAA JO} P3)|NSUDd

aq pjnoys S32.nos Lo I pauonuawaloje ay
Jey) payou AgaJay ale 1ep pue spiodal ajgnd
Jay)o pue sje(d ‘spaap papJodal wai) pajdiucd ale pue uojapsunl

SIY) uiw punoy Aladoud |ead jo Alojuaau) ay) woyy pasedasd

ale fey | ‘shenuns jou e 8)Is S|U} UO sdew ay | JaWe s

2z0Z '0€ Wle
199} 0G = youI |
[  * - *= N

glLoc/oL/ie ‘9jeQ ajeg
0% 199ld ales
00L88L$ :enjeAp passessy
0% :an|eA paJdajeq
001°88L% ‘9n|eA J9qIeN
001°G91$ :anjep Buipjing
000°cz$ ‘anjep puen
uoljewloju] anjep a2)g
a||nSBUABAA JO UMO] :diysumo]
¥€'0 :abealoy |e)OL
9681l Jing des)
2¢ssL ‘Baly pajesH

1S dNVTHOIYA €8¢

ONITIAMA 'ONITIIMA

NOLLIAAY LS3HO0 4 MVO
uoljewiou] ajs

0z-/a -49d PPY

£922/006 39y |eba

1688-90-5198  ‘Nid
uoljeuliolu] Juno2dy

£088G AN ‘UOISI|IIM

¢6%01 Xog Od

umolg uesng R Apuy o0

TTON VY 271 1334 1S dNVIHOIY ¥#6¢

104 uodeay

WYY .0z




*sdewl 953U} Lo pauiejuad Lol ewojul auyy 1o} Aljigisucdsal
|eBa) ou awnsse Japrotd aIsgem ay) pue AjUN03 poomAeH "sdew
858U} U0 PBUIEIUOD UOELLIOJUI AUE JO UO[RIYLIBA O} Pa)|NsUoD
8q pINOYS S82IN0S UONELL Jewd o1jgnd pauoiuawaIo e au
1L} paynou Agalsy ale 10 189S "EJEP PUE SpJooas oljgnd

d ‘spaap papiooal way pagdwod ale pue uojoipsun
punoy Ajuadoud |eal jo Aiojuaaul ay) wouy paledaud
L “sAaAINS Jou 8l a)Is SIL uo sdew sy iawe|asiq

2Z0Z ‘0€ Uote
199} 0G = youl |
(I -~

9L0¢/0L/e re)e(q ajes
0% :92ld 9leg
00L'88L% :anjep passassy
0% :anjeA peuajag
00lL'88L% :onjeA 1I9ep
00L'G9LS :anjep Bulpling
000'cZ$ :anjep pueT
uojjewioju] anjep aus
ajnsaukepn jo umol :diysumoy
€0 :abealoy |e)OL

9681 3ling deaj
¢SSl ‘Baly poajesH

1S ANVTHOIY ¢8¢

ONITIIMA "ONITIIMA

NOILIQAV 1S3404 MYO
uoljewiojuj aysg

0¢-/a +9Yd pPpY

£922/006 43y [eBa

1688-90-G 198 ‘Nid
UOIJBWLIOU| JUNODDY

£0885 AN ‘uolsIipn

¢6¥0 1 X0g Od

umolg uesng @ Apuy o/0

TTON VY OT1 1334 1S dNVIHOIY 62

Jo4 uoday
w2y ooz




2zoe ‘0€ Yolew

o »% K b\ \AGB
I




2zoz ‘0€ wew

REN-DXLY
O XA [Pjuspisay poowoquiBian J2a4s ey

-

Buiuoz 198413 puejyory




TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department
PO Box 100
9 South Main Street
Progress with Vision \)Uaynesville, NC 28786
(ot - Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

WAYNESVILLE

North Carolina

March 17, 2022

Notice of Public Hearing
Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment

The Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment will hold a public hearing on April 5, 2022 at
5:30 PM in the Town Hall Board Room, located at 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC, to consider an
application for a Variance regarding the property at 282 Richland Street (PIN 8615-06-8891).

For questions contact the Development Services Department at: (828) 456-8647, email:
bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov, mail: 9 South Main Street, Suite 110, Waynesville, NC 28786.

le



li 0915 Any 1aeqeg 3 zesiiin

i | siueqeB/eohtone e zojy

294 RICHLAND STREET LLCA NC LL;
c/o Andy & Susan Brown
PO Box 10492
Williston, ND 58803

DIPPY, PHILIP A
316 MESSER RD
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

MALEK, SHEREEN;
HILL, WENDY M
PO BOX 1164
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786-1164

CLEMMONS, EDWARD RONNIE;
CLEMMONS, BETTY LORAINE
306 MEADOW ST
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

" 1ools amt.ulalﬂzlah\}fasq'“ h

| soje[dwal /WO Aiane 0] 05 -

1 zdn-doy piogss s|1ajgagt 3p uye ainydey e| e zalday
| glo9d Aseg assalpe,p sansnbig

W R BOYD INVESTMENTS
474 MOUNTAIN COVE RD
WAYNESVILLE, NC 287856-8514

BRADLEY, BETTY BRUTON
PO BOX 57
EAGLE SPRINGS, NC 27242

MCALISTER, NANCY LAMM
7154 LAKE DR
ORLANDO, FL 32809

MELROSE, ADAM
301 MEADOW ST
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786-3731

' 's1L|a1ec|/Lu'oa'ma.ﬁe ey . ]

7
BENSON, SAMUEL K
70 OAK ST
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

DIXSON, DENNIS W;
DIXSON, MILDRED L
508 BIG COVE RD
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786-5487

HAYWOOD RENTALS
58 PIGEON ST
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

FIE, ANNE F
231 HAMER AVE
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786




282 and 294 Richland Street Notice

THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

WILL HOLD A PuBLIC HEARING
ON APRIL 5, 2022, AT 5:30 PM

\N THE TowN HALL BOARD RooMm
AT © SOUTH MAIN ST.
TO CONSIDER A
VARIANCE REQUEST

CONTACT THE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

828-456-8647

18



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

AYNESVILLE Developmenpt OSeBrvices Department

3 North Car, ox 100

r A, 9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786

Phone (828) 456-8647 » Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

Progress with Vision

FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MOUNTAINEER: March 23 and March 30, 2022 Editions
Date: March 17, 2022
Contact: Byron Hickox —452-0401

Notice of Public Hearings
Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment

The Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment will hold two public hearings on April 5, 2022,

at 5:30 PM, in the Town Hall Board Room, located at 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC, to consider:

1. An application for a Variance regarding the subdivision of the property at 282 Richland Street
(PIN 8615-06-8891).

2. An Appeal of Administrative Decision regarding the use of the property at 134 Belle Meade
Drive (PIN 8605-81-6159).

For more information contact the Development Services Department at: (828) 456-8647, email:
bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov, mail: 9 South Main Street, Suite 110, Waynesville, NC 28786.

114



Zoning Board of Adjustment Staff Report

Subject; Appeal of Administrative Decision
Applicant; Travis Dustin Smith
Meeting Date: April 5, 2022

Summary Information;:

Location: 134 Belle Meade Drive — PIN 8605-81-6159

Property Owner: Travis Dustin Smith
Acreage of site: (.25 acres
Zoning District: Hazelwood Urban Residential (H-UR)

Existing Development: Single-Family Dwelling

Background:

On November 30, 2018, the Development Services Department sent a letter to Travis Smith, owner of the
property then described as 1459 Brown Avenue (the structure with this address has since been
demolished). The letter informed Mr. Smith that the property was being used as a storage location for
vehicles, It appeared that the vehicles had been hauled or towed to the property, were in need of repair,
and were associated with Triangle Automotive Repair, located at 1404 Brown Avenue.

The letter further explained that the property is located within the Hazelwood Urban Residential District.
The two use types that were taking place on the property, Qutside Storage and Vehicle Services, are not
permitted within this zoning district, Therefore, vehicle storage and any associated towing activity cannot
be conducted at this location. The letter instructed Mr. Smith to discontinue the storage of vehicles and
any associated towing activity on the property at 1459 Brown Avenue within 30 days.

Mr. Smith took no action to discontinue these uses on the property, and a subsequent letter to the same
effect was sent to him on April 11, 2019, Mr. Smith took no action to discontinue the non-permitted uses.

On September 10, 2019, town staff members visited Triangle Automotive Repair to discuss the above-
mentioned violations and other safety concerns. Tauren, with Triangle Automotive Repair, inquired
about the possibility of rezoning the property at 1459 Brown Avenue to Hazelwood Business District,
which would permit Qutside Storage and Vehicle Services with some applicable supplemental standards.
That afternoon, Byron Hickox emailed Lauren the application for Zoning Map Amendment. The
application was never submitted by Mr. Smith.

On December 21, 2021, during a mediation procedure between town staff and Mr. Smith’s attorney, John
Sutton, Mr, Sutton inquired about the Appeal of Administrative Decision process. The Land
Development Standards Section 15.12.2(B) states that “An appeal of an administrative decision may be
taken by any person aggrieved (or by their authorized agent) or may be taken by any officer,
department, board or bureau of the town. Such an appeal shall be made to the Town Clerk within
thirty (30) days of the receipt of the written notice of decision from the town.” More than 30 days had
passed since the most recent written notice of violation.

On the advice of the Town Attorney, town staff issued a written interpretation regarding the use of the
property in question on December 22, 2021 to provide Mr. Smith a new 30-day window in which to
appeal this administrative decision.

0



2l

On February 11, 2022, Mr. Sutton submitted an email to Eddie Ward, Town Clerk, officially appealing
the administrative decision regarding this matter, to be taken before the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Items Entered as Evidence:

e e e

=
W b = O

Staff Report

Staff Interpretation Letter Sent to Mr. Sutton

Zoning Violation Letters sent to Mr. Smith (2)

Email to Lauren at Triangle Automotive with Zoning Map Amendment Application
Email to Town Clerk Eddie Ward from Mr. Sutton

Letter to Byron Hickox from Mr, Sutton

Zoning Map of Subject Property

Aerial Photographs of Subject Property from 2015 & 2019

Photographs of Property Posting Sign

. Adjacent Landowner Notice

. Adjacent Landowner Mailing List

. LDS Definitions of Qutside Storage and Vehicle Services — Section 17.3
. Land Development Standards — By Reference



22

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department
P.O. Box 100
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

WAYNESVILLE

: Norﬂ'l,Caro[iqa ]

Progress with Vision

December 22, 2021

John R. Sutton, Jr.
The Sutton Firm, P.A.
P.O. Box 145
Candler, NC 28715

RE: Use of property as vehicle storage

Dear Mr. Sutton,

I am writing this letter to provide a Development Services staff interpretation regarding the use of the
property located at 134 Belle Meade Drive (PIN 8605-81-6159). Based on previous inspections of the
property, it is being used as a storage location for vehicles. These vehicles appear to have been hauled
or towed to this location, are in need of repair, and are associated with Triangle Automotive Repair,
located at 1404 Brown Avenue. Additionally, tow trucks associated with Triangle Automotive Repair
have been observed on the property.

This property is located within the Hazelwood Urban Residential District. The two use types, Outside
Storage and Vehicle Services, are not permitted within this zoning district. Therefore, vehicle storage
and any associated towing activity cannot be conducted at this location.

This interpretation is identical to the interpretation expressed in the letter sent to the property’s owner,
Travis Smith, on April 11, 2019. According to the Land Development Standards, Section 15.12.2(B),
“An appeal of an administrative decision may be taken by any person aggrieved (or by their
authorized agent) or may be taken by any officer, department, board, or bureau of the town. Such an
appeal shall be made to the Town Clerk within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the written notice of
decision from the town.” Such an appeal would be heard in a quasi-judicial hearing before the Town
of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment,

If you have any additional questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact Byron Hickox at
828-452-0401 or by email at bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov.

Sincerely,

Byron Hickox
Land Use Administrator



23

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department

; P.O. Box 100

e i 9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786

Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

WAYNESVILLE

_ North Carofina

Progress with Vision

April 11,2019

Travis Smith
85 Mississippi Avenue
Waynesville, NC 28786

RE: Use of property as vehicle storage

Dear Mr. Smith,

I am writing this letter to inform you of a Zoning Violation that has come to the attention of the Town
of Waynesville Development Services Department. It is evident that the property described as 1459
Brown Avenue (PIN 8605-81-6159) is being used as a storage location for vehicles. It appears that
these vehicles have been hauled or towed to this location, are in need of repair, and are associated with
Triangle Automotive Repair, located at 1404 Brown Avenue. The storage of these vehicles at this
location violates the Town of Waynesville’s Land Development Standards. This letter is your second
notification regarding this violation.

This property is located within the Hazelwood Urban Residential District. The two use types, Outside
Storage and Vehicle Services, are not permitted within this zoning district. Therefore, vehicle storage
and any associated towing activity cannot be conducted at this location.

Please discontinue the storage of vehicles and any associated towing activity on the property at 1459
Brown Avenue within 30 days of the receipt of this letter. Failure to discontinue this particular activity
by this date can result in fines or other legal action against you.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation regarding this matter. If you have any additional questions
or comments, please do not hesitate to contact Byron Hickox at 828-452-0401 or by email at

bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov.

Sincerely,

Byron Hickox
Land Development Administrator



LY

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department
WAYNESVILLE 55 Boa
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

. North Carolina_
R

Progress with Vision

November 30, 2018

Travis Smith
85 Mississippi Avenue
Waynesville, NC 28786

RE: Use of property as vehicle storage

Dear Mr. Smith,

I am writing this letter to inform you of a Zoning Violation that has come to the attention of the Town
of Waynesville Development Services Department. It is evident that the property described as 1459
Brown Avenue (PIN 8605-81-6159) is being used as a storage location for vehicles. It appears that
these vehicles have been hauled or towed to this location, are in need of repair, and are associated with
Triangle Automotive Repair, located at 1404 Brown Avenue. The storage of these vehicles at this
location violates the Town of Waynesville’s Land Development Standards.

This property is located within the Hazelwood Urban Residential District. The two use types, Outside
Storage and Vehicle Services, are not permitted within this zoning district. Therefore, vehicle storage
and any associated towing activity cannot be conducted at this location.

Please discontinue the storage of vehicles and any associated towing activity on the property at 1459
Brown Avenue within 30 days of the receipt of this letter. Failure to discontinue this particular activity
by this date can result in fines or other legal action against you.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation regarding this matter. If you have any additional questions
or comments, please do not hesitate to contact Byron Hickox at 828-452-0401 or by email at

bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov.

Sincerely,

Byron Hickox
Land Development Administrator



r3

Bzron Hickox

From: Byron Hickox

Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 12:31 PM
To: 'triauto1404@yahoo.com'

Ce: Elizabeth Teague

Subject: Rezoning Application

Attachments: Development Office_20190910_113203.pdf
Lauren,

Attached is the application for Map Amendment (rezoning). The form can also be found at this
link: https://www.waynesvillenc.gov/sites/default/files/2019-08/land-development-standards-
map-amendment.pdf

If you decide to pursue rezoning, please contact Elizabeth Teague at
eteague@waynesvillenc.gov or by phone at 456-2004.

Thanks,

Byron

Byron Hickox | Land Use Administrator

Town of Waynesville, NC

9 South Main Street, Suite 110 | Waynesville, NC 28786
(0) 828.452.0401 | (F) 828.452.1492
bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov | www.waynesvillenc.gov

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 132 (Public Records), all electronic
correspondence to and from this address may be considered public record, and as such, subject
to request and review by third parties at any time.

From: copier <copiet@waynesvillenc.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 12:26 PM

To: Byron Hickox <bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov>

Subject: Scanned image from Town of Waynesville Planning & Development

Reply to: Development Office <Copier@waynesvillenc.gov> Device Name: Town of
Waynesville Planning & Development Device Model: MX-3070N
Location: 9 S. Main St. FA9(7



From: John Sutton <jsuttonjr@suttonfirm.com>

Date: Friday, February 11, 2022 at 12:11 PM

To: eward@waynesvillenc.gov <eward@waynesvillenc.gov>, Martha Bradley
<martha@sosharpe.com>

Subject: Town of Waynesville v. Smith

Ms. Ward,

I am writing to confirm Mr. Smith's appeal of the Town's zoning decision regarding his use of his
property located at 134 Belle Meade Drive (PIN # 8605-81-6159). | have attached a letter dated January
21, 2022 to that effect.

Thank you,

John

John R. Sutton, Ir.
The Sutton Firm, P.A.
P.O. Box 145
Candler, NC 28715
(828) 667-5476
www.suttonfirm.com

26



.

THE SUTTON FIRM, P.A.

Attorneys Al Taw

Post Office Box 145
70 Pisgah Highway
Candler North Carolina 28715
Attorneys:
George W. Sutton, Jr. (1938 - 1975) '
John R, Sutton, Sr. (1943-2014) Telephone: (828) 667-5476
John R, Sutton, Jr. Facsimile:  (828) 667-0976
January 21, 2022
Town of Waynesville
Attn: Byron Hickox, Land Use Administrator
P.O. Box 100
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786

RE:  Use of Property located at 134 Belle Meade Drive (PIN 8605-81-6159)
Dear Mr. Hickox:

This letter is in response to yours dated December 22, 2021 and received by my office on
January 13, 2022. Please consider this correspondence as both a written notice to appeal the Town’s
decision to the Board of Adjustment as well as a request to review and re-evaluate the decision of the
town.

The decision of the Town appears to be based on the allegation that vehicles that are awaiting
repair from the Triangle Auto business across the road are being stored on the lot. This is not the case
and has not been the case for several years, Additionally, the allegation that there are tow trucks being
parked on the lot (while we have denied that this is in violation of the Town’s Ordinance) is now moot
as the “rollback” truck in question has been sold and is no longer on the property. I would request
that the Town review its decision based upon cutrent conditions.

Thank you for your attention to this and all other matters.

Cc:  Martha Bradley, Attorney for the Town of Waynesville
Travis Smith




*sdew 958} U PAUIRILDD UDI BULIOU| U} J0) AjjiqIsucdsal
953U} UD PaUlBJUOD UONELWIO U AUE JO LONBIYIISA 10} P3)|NSUCD
8q pjnoys s83.nos uonewlojul Aewd ojgnd pauonuswsloje sy}
1eU) paynou Agalsy a.e BlIs SIY} 40 SI9S( "ejlep pue spieoal ajgnd
Jayjo pue sjeyd ‘spaap papJooal wal) pajdwos ale pue uohapsun
sy} uiyw puncy Ajiadoud |eaJ jo Alojuaaul sy woly paJedald
aJefay] "shanns jou aie ajis siy) uo sdew ay) lowWepsK]

20T '0€ Yol
199} 0G = you! |
(N

RAlTArAR :9jeQg °|eg
19011d a|eg

:anjep pessessy

:anjep peJajeq

:anjep JoqJe

:anjep Buipjing

1anjep pueT

uojjew.oiu] anjep a)s
D[INSBUABAA JO UMOL :diysumoy]
gz 0 nwmmm.._u< jejol

g6l HIng Jes)

128 :ealy pajesy

d0 JAVIIN 31134 #EL

ONITTEMA
aocom oodd
uoljewioju| ajls

cLivev
Z6/¥6Y 4°9d PPY

6.€2/268 49y |ebaq

6519-18-G098 ‘Nid
UOljelIolU] JUNOIIY

98282 ON 'ITIASINAVM
AV IddISSISSIN 58
d SIAVHL ‘HLINS

104 Loday

=JIETTI [t
_mwxm_._._.._c.__._h

PUISI(] £8aUeng poomiazZeH




GLO0  G£000

L0 5000
0091 2eoz ‘0 yolep




GL0O0 §/000

Y
100 S000
0091 Ze0z ‘0€ uaiep

ydeiboloyd [eusy 610 - @AUQ opesiy aj1eg vE|

r vl 3 1




21

sted 3/22/22-



22

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department
PO Box 100
9 South Main Street
Progress with Vision Waynesville, NC 28786
2 Phone (828) 456-8647 » Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

WAYNESVILLE

North Carolina

March 17, 2022

Notice of Public Hearing
Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment

The Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment will hold a public hearing on April 5, 2022 at
5:30 PM in the Town Hall Board Room, located at 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC, to consider an
Appeal of Administrative Decision regarding the property at 134 Belle Meade Drive (PIN 8605-81-6159).

For questions contact the Development Services Department at: (828) 456-8647, email:
bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov, mail: 9 South Main Street, Suite 110, Waynesville, NC 28786.



COX, RICHARD
698 CAMELOT DR
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786-2366

SMITH, TRAVIS DUSTIN
85 MISSISSIPPE AVE
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786-1965

KIRKPATRICK, MAX D
56 HYATT ST
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

PRESSLEY, RICKY F
PO BOX 2018
CANDLER, NC 28715

MILLER, MELANIE S
127 BELLE MEADE DR
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786-1504

" pat avery.cam/ patents

Easy Peel“Address Labels

.. Bend along line to expose Pop-up Fdge™ -

UNKNOWN OWNER
UNKNOWN
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

MASSIE, HUGH J
115 BELLE MEADE DR
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

DEAN, WILDA/LT;
DEAN, RONALD J
1433 BROWN AVE
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

UNKNOWN OWNER
UNKNOWN
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

SMITH, TRAVIS D
85 MISSISSIPPE AVE
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

-+ - Etiquettes d'adresse Easy Peel® . -
Repliez & la hachure afin de révélerle rebord Pop-up®

Go to avery.com/templates |

Use Avery Temuolate 5160 |

33

CASKEY, PATTI L;
FOWLER, JUDITH JANE
PO BOX 143
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

COFFEY, ELEANOR
165 VALLEY VIEW TERR
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

YARKOVICH, JOSEPH GENE;
CROOK, ANNELIE
1 Shackleford Dr
Asheville, NC 28806-9534

COCHRAN, LOUIE ALLEN
678 OXNER COVE RD
WAYNESVILLE, NC 28786

Allez a avery.ca/gabarits. !,
Utilisez le Gabarit Avety 3160 |




24

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department
PO Box 100
- Py | 9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

F'° WAYNESVILLE

Progress with Vision

FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MOUNTAINEER: March 23 and March 30, 2022 Editions
Date: March 17, 2022
Contact: Byron Hickox —452-0401

Notice of Public Hearings
Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment

The Town of Waynesville Zoning Board of Adjustment will hold two public hearings on April 5, 2022,
at 5:30 PM, in the Town Hall Board Room, located at 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC, to consider:

1. Anapplication for a Variance regarding the subdivision of the property at 282 Richland Street
(PIN 8615-06-8891).

2. An Appeal of Administrative Decision regarding the use of the property at 134 Belle Meade
Drive (PIN 8605-81-6159).

For more information contact the Development Services Department at: (828) 456-8647, email:
bhickox@waynesvillenc.gov, mail: 9 South Main Street, Suite 110, Waynesville, NC 28786.



=™ Qg™

Definitions — Land Development Standards Section 17.3

Outside Storage. The storage of any material for a period greater than forty-eight (48) hours,
including items for sale, lease, processing and repair (excluding vehicles for sale) outside the
principal or accessory buildings on a property.

Vehicle Services—Minor Maintenance/Repair/Wash. The repair, servicing, alteration,
restoration, towing painting, cleaning, or finishing of automobiles, trucks, recreational
vehicles, boats and other vehicles as a primary use, including the incidental wholesale and
retail sale of vehicle parts as an accessory use. Minor facilities providing limited repair and
maintenance services. Examples include: car washes, attended and self-service; car stereo and
alarm system installers; detailing services; muffler and radiator shops; quick-lube services; tire
and battery sales and installation (not including recapping).

Vehicle Services—Major Repair/Body Work. The repair, servicing, alteration, restoration,
towing, painting, cleaning, or finishing of automobiles, trucks, recreational vehicles, boats,
large appliances, commercial and industrial equipment and other vehicles as a primary use,
including the incidental wholesale and retail sale of vehicle parts as an accessory use. This
includes major repair and body work which encompasses towing, collision repair, other body
work and painting services, and tire recapping,



